
43 
 

Chairman’s initials 

MINUTES of a meeting of the LOCAL PLAN ADVISORY COMMITTEE held in the Council 
Chamber, Council Offices, Coalville on TUESDAY, 21 FEBRUARY 2017  
 
Present:  Councillor J Legrys (in the Chair) 
 
Councillors J Cotterill, J Hoult (Substitute for Councillor R D Bayliss), R Johnson, G Jones 
(Substitute for Councillor J Bridges), V Richichi and M Specht  
 
In Attendance: Councillors T J Pendleton 
 
Officers:  Mr S Bambrick, Mrs C Hammond, Mr I Nelson, Mr J Newton and Mr S Stanion 
 

14. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors R D Bayliss and Councillor J 
Bridges. 
 

15. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
 
There were no interests declared. 
 

16. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
Consideration was given to the minutes of the meeting held on 6 October 2016. 

 
It was moved by Councillor J Cotterill seconded by Councillor V Richichi and  
 
RESOLVED THAT: 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 6 October 2016 be approved and signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record. 
 

17. COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
Noted. 
 

18. LOCAL PLAN PROGRESS UPDATE: EXAMINATION, HEDNA AND NEXT STEPS 
 
The Head of Planning and Regeneration presented the report to Members. He advised 
Members that the HEDNA had been published in January and it replaced the SHMA, and 
assessed the housing and employment requirements for the whole of the Leicester and 
Leicestershire area between 2011 and 2036, adding that it was a big piece of work that 
had been carried out by G L Hearn over the past 18 months. He highlighted to Members 
that the HEDNA assessed a housing need for the district of 481 dwellings per year, the 
submitted Local Plan allowed for 520 dwellings per year, and a requirement of an 
additional 65 – 66 ha of employment land, which was significantly higher than what was 
originally suggested. Members were informed that the authority had provided further 
information to the Inspector stating that it did not think that it needed to make any further 
provision for housing land as it had over provided ensuring that if some developments did 
not progress, the authority would still meet the needs He also informed Members that 
North West Leicestershire also had an obligation to ensure that the needs of the whole 
housing market area were met should other authorities be unable to meet their 
requirements. 

 
In relation to the employment land, the Director of Services advised Members that the 
authority recognised that there was an under provision of land in the plan in accordance to 
the figures in the HEDNA based on certain categories, but it was felt that the over 



44 
 

Chairman’s initials 

provision of land for logistics purposes that would be provided at the Roxhill development 
could be seen as meeting the requirements in a different way, however other agencies 
may have other views. Members were informed that the Inspector would consider the new 
figures and additional information on the 21 March 2017 and form a view with a report 
expected around May. 
 
Councillor M Specht stated that having seen the figures in the report he was 95% certain 
that the Local Plan would be accepted and he felt that there could be a possibility of more 
land being found for employment. He supported the report and recommendations. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor V Richichi, the Director of Services stated that 
he was confident that the authority had done all it could to ensure that the submitted plan 
was sound but it was now in the hands of the Inspector, however now that the HEDNA 
figures had been produced in relation to housing the authority was in a better position, but 
it could be the employment land that raised further issues for the plan. 
 
Councillor G Jones was reassured about the housing figures, but expressed concerns 
over the employment land. 
 
The Director of Services advised Members of the different employment land categories 
and that there appeared to be a shortfall on B1 sites but the amount of B8 land that was 
available at the Roxhill site would hopefully go towards making up the shortfall. 
 
Councillor G Jones felt that the authority was concentrating on the northern parishes and 
asked about the land availability for the Ashby/Coalville areas. 
 
The Director of Services stated that where there was a shortfall of B8 land in some parts 
of the district but there was more than enough B8 sites across the district as a whole.  
 
Councillor G Jones stated it was up to the authority to ensure that there was a good mix 
employment land, but felt that Ashby was running out. 
 
It was moved by Councillor M Specht, seconded by Councillor J Legrys and  
 
RESOLVED THAT: 
 

(i) The main issues arising out of the Local Plan Examination Hearing Sessions held 
so far be noted, 

(ii) The main findings of the HEDNA and the resulting implications for the Local Plan 
be noted and 

(iii) The Inspector’s proposed next steps and revised timetable be noted. 
 

19. GYPSY AND TRAVELLER SITE ALLOCATION DPD: UPDATE 
 
The Planning Policy Team Manager presented the report to Members. He advised that the 
needs assessment was still ongoing and once complete would provide the authority with a 
definitive answer to the number of pitches required. He informed Members that when the 
consultation in February 2016 on the emerging DPD had been carried out representations 
had been submitted via the Council’s consultation hub which officers had considered, 
responded to and reported to the Committee in July 2016. However it had been brought to 
officers’ attention that a number of representations had been made via email that had not 
been picked up for the July meeting and these were included for Members information. He 
highlighted to Members that the next stage would be to prepare the Allocation 
Development Plan once the Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Needs Assessment had 
been published but that may not be until after the County elections in May. 

 



45 
 

Chairman’s signature 

In response to questions from Councillor V Richichi, officers advised that the risks 
highlighted in the report referred to the Local Plan not progressing and that these risks 
would be greater to the authority if it was seen as not even trying to address the need of 
sites, that the assessment would identify the figures for the County and that there was no 
reason to believe the authority would fail. He was also advised that residents at any sites 
would be subject to Council Tax and depending on the tenor, rent. 
 
Councillor M Specht stated that he was waiting to see the full assessment of the provision 
required and noted that it was not expected until after the elections in May but felt that 
issues could arise as the figures were unknown as to how many pitches were needed and 
assurances had been given that the Allocations Development Plan would run parallel to 
the Local Plan.  He expressed disappointment that there had been no response from 
either the Gypsy and Traveller community or the Multi Agency Traveller Unit Co-ordinator 
from Leicestershire County Council. He advised that he was happy with the update. 
 
It was moved by Councillor M Specht, seconded by Councillor R Johnson and  
 
RESOLVED THAT: 
 
The Gypsy and Traveller Site Allocation DPD update be noted. 
 

The meeting commenced at 6.30 pm 
 
The Chairman closed the meeting at 7.05 pm 
 

 


